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Education and Leadership Trust

Trustees’ Report

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s report of the
charitable company for the period 1st September 2019 to 31st August 2020. The annua! report serves the
purposes of both a Trustees' report, and a directors’ report under company law.

The academy trust operates three secondary academies in Manchester. lis academies have a combined

capacity of 3,652 and had a roll of 3,579 in the school census on 4th October 2020

i [ Secondary Number on roll
tWhailey Range 11-18 High School ! 11-18 1,581

| Levenshulme High School | 11-16 1,004

| The East Manchester Academy i 11-16 994

Structure, Governance and Management
Constitution

The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charily. The charitable company’s
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust. The
Trustees of Education and Leadership Trust Limited are also the directors of the chariiable company for the
purposes of company law. The charitable company operates as Education and Leadershlp Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and o the date these accounts are approved dre
included In the Referance and Administrative Detalls on page 1.

Members’ Liability

Each Member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in
the avent of it being wound up whilst they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracied before
they ceased to be a Member.

Trusteses' Indemnities

Professional Indemnity Insurance is in place to protect Members, Trustees, governors and officars from
claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions oceurring on trust business.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

Trustees and Governors are recruited by invitation, dependent on their expertise, experience and skills. They
can be identified for invitation in a range of ways, including via organisations such as Academy
Ambassadors or from personal recommendation by colleagues. Trustees may be appointed as specified in
the articles of association {50 to 63), and are appointed for a term of 4 years. The Executive Headleacher is
the Accounting Officer, with no term end date. Although the ESFA/DFE guidance Is that members of staff can
be Trustees, the strong recommendation of the Office of the Regional Schools Commissioner and thus, via
them, the DfE is that best practice now is that members of staff are not Trustees o give greater saparation
between the Trust Board and staff and making lines of accountability clearer. This was discussed and
agreed with the colleagues affected, and with Trustees, and there are no longer any staff Trustees.

The current Trust Board has a strong skill-base, from a wide range of industries and organisations, with
Trustees holding, or having held, senior management roles In: Public Sector Finance; Human Resource
Management; Educational Standards, Higher Education; Improvement and Governance; Arts and Culture:
Law; and Governance.

Policles and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

Trustees are interviewed and selected to ensure that a robust overview of governance is maintained
throughout the trust. New Trustees are provided with an induction which includes access to documentation in
respect of all trust policies and procedures. In addition, appropriate training opportunities may be offared,
depending on their current level of experience and expertise. The trust has membership of the Nationa!
Governors' Association (NGA), which is also a source of training and support for trustees, and the
Confederation of School Trusts (CST).
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Education and Leadership Trust

Trustees’ Report (continued)

Trustees and governors attend development sessions to inform and review strategic planning; and also, to
ensura high and consistent standards of governance and challenge across all schoals In the trust. All
Trustees and governors have access to the suite of online training provided by the NGA.

Organisational Structure

On the strong recommendation of the DfE, through the Office of the Regional Schools Commissioner, we
have moved to create separation between Members and Trustees during this year. From a position where
each of our three Members was also a Trustee, we now have three Members only one of whom is also a
Trustee. Having one person in this dual role is accepted as effective practice in the sector. The process of
Identifying and appointing a further two Members, to take us to the recommended number of five, is currently
underway. The role of Members [s described in the DfE Governance Handbook, and Members are
undertaking some consultancy work with a National Leader of governance, through CST, to develop their
understanding and operation of the role.

The Trustees are responsible for authorising a core set of policies and procedures, the determination of the
annual funding allocations to each academy, compliance with DfE/ESFA requirements in relation to financial
management, accounting and reporting, oversight of the educational vision and strategic planning and
development of the trust and its academies, including the approval of the academy development plans, and
the appointment of the Executive Headteacher. The Trustees also approve the Annual Report and Financial

Statements.

The Trustees delegate responsibility for oversight of a range of defined aspects of school operation,
compliance and impact {o the Academy Committees. These responsibilities are detailed in the Trust
Scheme of Delegation and the Terms of Reference for the committees. Each Academy Committee has a
designated governor for safeguarding and for students with special educational needs and/or disabilities
(SEND) and there is a role descriptor for this governor and for the nominated safeguarding Trustes. There is
a nominated Trustee for safeguarding who is establishing new ways of working with the link governors and
Designated Safeguarding Leads to secure oversight across the Trust. The Chair of the Trust Board meets
periodically with Academy Committee Chairs to co-ordinate governance across the committees and ensure
clear and consistent communication flow between the tiers of governance. The Local Gaverning body (as
they were then known) for TEMA was replaced by an Interim Management Board (IMB} following the section
5 Inspection in December 2019. This put in place a group of education, safeguarding and social care
professionals who could provide the expertise and capacity to drive and evaluate improvements at the
school at the rate needed. To this end, it was agreed that 2 of the IMB members would be paid at
consultancy rates for this governance aclivity (as Is Increasingly common in the Academies sector) - the
Chair and the Vice Chair — one of whom is an ex-Headteacher with significant school improvement
experience and impact; and the other was a Director of Education at a Greater Manchester local authority.
The IMB meets much more frequently than Academy Committees, meeting every 3 weeks, and has a regular
presence in school to carry out evaluative activity as well as providing support and guidance to school
leadars.

The Executive Headteacher is the accounting officer. The day-to-day management of the trust academies is
delegated to the Executive Headteacher and the Academy Headteachers and Senior Leadership Teams
(SLT) of each academy. The SLT, as appropriate to each academy, consists of the Academy Headteacher,
Deputy Headteachers, Assistant Headteachers and School Business Manager. In addition, there Is a Trust
HR Director and Trust Finance Director who report to the Executive Headteacher, and also to the

Hesadteacher in each academy.

The SLT in each academy is responsible for implementing the agreed policies and procedures set down by
the trust, including the implementation of all statutory regulations, The Academy Headteachers are
responsible for appointing all staff, managing the delegated budgets and resources, ensuring the delivery of
an appropriate curriculum, together with the development and implementation of measures to secure the
highest possible standards of teaching and learning and student progress and achievement. The Academy
Headteachers are also responsible for ensuring the development and implementation of measures to secure
effective support for students together with the delivery of high standards of student behaviour, safety and

well-belng.
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Education and Leadership Trust

Trustees’ Report (continued)

The Trustees meet, from September 2020, each half term {i.e. 6 times per year) - previously the meeting
pattern was four times per school year - with one meeting in each academic year being the annual general
meeting. Academy Committees meet 5 times per year. During the 2019/20 academic year, there were an
additional five extraordinary Board meetings. These were friggered by the section 5 inspection at TEMA and
then, latterly, responding to the COVID-19 pandemic and the need to fulfil responsibilities for risk
assessments and other statutory obligations. Reports from the Academy Committees are received and
scrufinised by trustees.

Rolas and responsibilities of trustees, governors, the Executive Headteacher, Academy Headteachers and
senior leaders are defined in the trust's Scheme of Delegation and the Financial Scheme of Delegation,
Each committee has Terms of Reference.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The salaries of the Senlor Leadership Teams in each acadamy are set in line with the ISR (Individual School
Range) set out In the Blue Book. Assistant Headteachers and Deputy Headteachers are on 5-point ranges,
and the Academy Headteachers are on 7-point ranges.

The performance of all members of the Senior Leadership Teams is appraised on an annual basis, and
recommendations for pay progression are reviewed by the Executive Headteacher.

The remuneration of the Executive Headteacher is set by the board of trustees/directors; and is
benchmarked against Executive Headteachers in other multi-academy trusts. The remuneration and
performance of the Executive Headteacher is appraised on an annual basis by the board of
trustees/directors. An external School Improvement Partner is em ployed to lead this process for the
Executive Headteacher in order to provide objective, professional advice to the trustees. The Exacutive
Headteacher carries out the appraisal of Headteachers with the Chair of the Academy Committee for the
school.

Trade union facility time

Under the provisions of the Trade Union {Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017, where
an academy trust has more than 49 full time equivalent employees throughout any 7 months within the
reporting period, it must inciude information included in Schedule 2 of the Regulations. The information to be
published consists of four tables covering:

Relevant union officials

Number of employaes who were relevant union Full-time equivalent employee
officials during the relevant period number
4] 5.87

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentags of fime | Number of employees
0% 1
1%-50% 5
51%-88% -
100% -

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Provide the total cost of facility time £22,707
Provide the total pav bill £18,895,813
Provide the percentage of the total pay bill spent on 0.12%
facility time, calculated as: (total cost of facility time +
totai pay bill) x 100
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Education and Leadership Trust

Trustees’ Report {(continued)

Pald trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a 2.1%
pearcantage of total paid facility time hours calculated

as;

{total hours spent on paid trade union activities by

relevant union officials during the relevant period +

total paid facility time hours} x 100

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

The trust is part of a network, the Manchester Schools Alliance, which includes a number of other schools
and academies in the Manchester area. This involves collaborative working across a range of disciplines to
help to improve the educational cutcomes for children in the Manchester area. The trust is also a strategic
partner of ‘“Teach Mancheaster’, one of the teaching school alliances in the city.

The trust is working with the Alliance Manchester Business School (AMBS - University of Manchester).
AMBS provides mentors, speakers for certificate evenings, enterprise links, competitions for students,
English as an additional language (EAL) support for parents, and aspiration-ralsing visits and events.

The trust is part of the Cooperative Schools Society, which operates across the UK, sharing good practice
and accountability, together with promoting cooperative values and ethical working practices,

The trust is working with the Manchester United Foundation and the link was established due to shared
values of: inspiring leadership in young people; promoting sport and healthy lifestyles; and, inspiring raised
aspirations via a range of activities linked to a top giobal brand for sport. The civic pride it promotes means a
number of the trust's key values are promoted. Manchester United Foundation employees work in the three
schools to: mentor some vulnerable students; engage others in sports leadership; provide expert coaching in
footbail; and promote a wide range of careers. The Trust also works with City in the Community and an
increasing range of partners in the voiuntary and community secfor.

Whalley Range 11-18 High School shares its site with Range Stadium, a sports facility owned by Manchester
City Councll. There is a lease agreement and a management agreement in place in respect of the use of
Range Stadium, which is currently shared between the school, GLL and the Greater Manchester Basketball

Club.

Levenshulme High Schoal shares one of its buiidings with Acacias Community Primary School, a community
school owned by Manchester City Coungcil, There is a shared use agreement between Levenshuime High
School, Acacias Community Primary School and Manchester City Council.

The East Manchester Academy shares Its building with Beswick Library which is owned and operated by
Mancheaster City Council. There is a shared use agreement in place between The East Manchester Academy
and Manchester City Council's Library Service, currently under review.

The East Manchester Academy shares its site with a rugby pitch, a sports facility owned by Manchester City
Council. There is a lease agreement and a management agreement in place in respect of the use of the
rugby pitch, however this is under review. The lettings company which ran the facilities hire at The East
Manchester Academy went out of business due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

The trust commissions the following services from the Local Authority: Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS)
checking, Legal Services, Staff Insurances, Internal Audit, Payroll and Personnel, Recruitment Advertising,
Pupil Admission and Appeals, Pupil Referral Unit, Risk Management, Trade Union Facilities Management.

The trust commissions the following services from One Education, which is an LA related organisation;
Attendance Support (pupils), Educational Psychologist, Peripatetic music service.

Engagement with employees {including disabled persons)

Educalion and Leadership Trust communicates regularly with all employees through staff brisfing sessions
{emall, face to face and virtual) to ensure they are kept up to date on matters concerning them.
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Education and Leadership Trust

Trustees’ Report (continued)

We welcome the views of our employess on a variety of different subject areas. We regularly meet employee
representatives to ensure employees’ views and feedback on local issues are considered when making
decisions which impact our employees.

We use staff surveys at both school and trust level to understand how vaiued and involved our amployses fee!
in their everyday work, and to identify any areas in which we can better support themn in their roles.

We have a robust recruitment and selsction process which is fully compiiant with the Equality Act 2010. Career
davelopment and fraining Is a key priority. We provide a personalised Induction programme along with high
quality tralning and opportunities for professional developmeni.

We are a flexible employer and the health and well-being of our employees is important. We provide ongoing
support to all staff through our Employee Assistance Programme and Occupational Health provider to ensure
we can support our employees,

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the trust

Education and Leadership Trust aims to deal fairly and consistently with all those in a business relationship
with the trust.

Whilst we have established good relationships with key suppliers, we welcome approaches from all suppliars
to our sector; but particularly from UK-based organisations in general, and local businesses in particular

We recognise the importance of cashflow for many of our suppliers and aim to pay all invoices within a
maximum period of 30 days; aithough in practice, many debts are seftled with 14 days.

The trust has a Best Value approach to larger purchases, with the selection of goods and services based on
a combination of competitive pricing and also good quality.

Woe continue to maintain business relationships with Manchester Local Authority, In part due to the quality of
their offer in specialised sectors; but also, to ensure our schools continue to be part of a team effort to
improve educational autcomes for students in our city.

Cbhjectlves and Activities
Objects and Alms
The trust’'s object is specifically restricted to the following:
to advance, for the public benefit, education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudica to the
generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing schools (the
Academies) offering a broad and balanced curriculum.
Objectives, Strateglies and Actlivities
The Trust's main aim is to inspire and nurture young people who:
s learn throughout their lives.
+ play a full part in life and work - guided by Co-operative values.
» are active citizens of Greater Manchester, the UK and the world.

s achieve to their potential and

¢ lead fulfilling lives as valued members of soclety.

Page |7



Education and Leadership Trust

Trustees’ Report (continued)

The work of the Trust is built on the principles of Excellence, Leadership and Teamwork including:
o high expectations for all.

+ aninspiring and challenging curriculum through which students will develop bread knowledge and
personal leadership qualities.

¢ staff and students collaborating to attain high outcomes and make accelerated progress, working
collaboratively as a community

The main objectives of the trust during the year ended 31 August 2020 are summarised beiow:
e To raise the standard of educational achievements of all pupils in the trust's academies.

» To ensure that every pupil enjoys the same high-quality education in terms of resourcing, teaching
and learning.

s To ensure that pupil behaviour is excellent; and to ensure exemplary standards of safeguarding.

¢« Toimprove the effectiveness of the academies by keeping the curriculum and organisational
structures under continual review.

s To comply with all statutory and curriculum requirements.

o To maintain close links with indusiry and commerce and to utilise those links for the benefit of the
trust and pupils

» To provide value for money for the funds expended.

s To conduct the trust and academy business in accordance with the highest standards of integrity,
probity and openness.

« To ensure every pupil has the opportunity to take part in leadership opportunities in order to help
prepare them for a positive future beyond school.

The details of the activities in place to deliver these aims and objectives, and the success criteria for them,
are captured in the Trust Strategic Plan, the individual academy development plans and the Executive
Tearn’s operational plan.

Public Benefit

Throughout the 20198-20 academic year, the Trust has provided education for over 3,500 young people in the
city of Manchester aged 11-18. The Trust uses the Manchester City Council admissions service to
administer applications and place management for 11-16 students. Places are aliocated on a proximlity basls
and there is no academic or other selection — other than that both Levenshulme and Whalley Range are
single sex schools. Whalley Range 11-18 High School manages its own admissions for places in the Sixth
Form, for which there are minimum standards of achievement in Key Stage 4 qualifications required to
acoess the courses. Achievement at Levenshulme and Whalley Range continuss to be excellent and that at
The East Manchester Academy is improving.

In setting our objectives and planning our activities the trustees have carefully considered the Charity
Commission’s general guidance on public benefit.
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Education and Leadership Trust

Trustees’ Report (continued)

Strategic Report
Achievements and Performance

The COVID-19 pandemic and associated lockdown led to the cancellation of GCSE, A’ level and vocationgl
qualification exams in the 2020 summer exam series. The outcomes achieved by young people in summer
2020 were, in the end, generated from a combination ('best-of) of Centre Assessed Grades {CAGs) and
national dataset output based on an algorithm created by Ofqual which was subsequently withdrawn (having
been discredited due to flaws In the algorithm introducing some significant biases which would particularly
affect disadvantaged students and those attending schools in challenging circumstances). Because of the
pandemic and its impact, there are no accountability tables for either performance or attendance for the
2019-20 academic year.

As a Trust, we followed agreed protocols for generating these CAGs, which were evidence-based and
worked through with integrity and challenge in each school. Nationally, for a range of reasons, there was an
Increase in the rate of achievement of grades 4 and above across subjects. The schools worked closely with
the post-16 providers that our Year 11 students had applied to so that we could be as confident as possible
that students were able to move on to appropriate courses in September, despite the disruption to the exams
and shifts in national cutcomes. Sixth Form staff at Whalley Range also worked closely with the universities
to ensure that all Year 13 students could progress to one of their top choices of course and university.

During the period of full national lockdown, alt three schools offered provision for the children of key workers
and children with SEND or other significant vulnerabilities. Uptake of this provision was low, desplle
extensive communication with parents and carers, and the provision for Levenshulme and Whalley Range
students was amalgamated onto the Whalley Range site for a period of time. During this time the vast
majority of staff at all our schools worked from home and communication with them was a priority for all team
leaders as well as for our senior leadership teams. Staff have also continued to have access to the
Employee Assistance Programme as normal. For the last few weeks of the summer term, in line with
government expectations, Year 10 and 12 students were brought back into schools on a rota, giving the
opportunity to assess and discuss their iearning during lockdown and set further work.

All three schools reopened fully to students in September 2020, following significant work over the summer
to produce plans and risk assessments which met the expectations of the DfE, the HSE and Public Health
England hierarchy of control. Trustees were fully involved in review and approval of these risk assessmants,
and consultation was carried out with staff and the professional associations at both school and Trust level.

Staff in all three schools have reported that they feel that they have been listened to, communicated with and
supported well throughout this process. Manchester City Council's Heaith & Safety team also reviewed all
schools’ risk agsessments and reported back that ours were fully compliant.

The conlinuing COVID-19 situation means thal thare are significant stresses on our ability to function
‘normally' in the 2020-21 school year. As positive cases among the student population are notified, groups
of students who have potentially been close contacts are sent home to self-isolate while othars have 1o salf-
Isolate bacause of contacts oulside of school. For some students, they will have repeated pariods of salf-
isolation throughout the year which will increasingly lead to differentials in how those students make
progress. As more staff are also required lo self-isolate, compounding the ‘normal’ reasons for, and levels
of, absence among siaff, we will also at times be potentially unable to remain open fo all vear groups. Prior
to the October half term break, Whalley Range had to fully close to two year groups for several days, due o
siaff absence. Even when open, students will be likely to experience a higher than usual lavel of provision
through supply teachers, which Is also disruptive for them.
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Education and Leadership Trust

Trustees' Report (continued)

Key Performance indicators

Key Stage 4 results WRHS LHS TEMA INational
Basics (Students achieving a grade 5 or better
in English and maths GCSEs) S - 22.5% 49.2%
Basics (Students achieving a grade 4 or better
in English and maths GCSEs) e A — Uik
Attainment 8 score 53.6 54.4 40.4 50.7
Progress 8 score 0.62 1.29 -0.47 0
Sggllsh Baccalaureate average point score per 5.08 523 3.58 4.35
Whalley Range 11-18 High School: Key Stage 5
WRHS Local
Performance measure Sixth Form | Authority National

Key Stage 5 - A Level cohort (2019-20 provisional)

Number of students at the end of 16-18 study with an

A level exam entry 34 B
Average point score per A level entry expressed as a C+ _ B
grade

Average point score per A level entry 33.5 - -
A-level Value-added score 0.34 | |

Key Stage 5 — Vocational (Applied General) qualifications f201 9-20 provislonal)

Number of students at the end of 16-18 study with an

[

applied general exam entry o )
Average point score per applied general entry Dist- _ 3
exprasaed as a grade

Average point score per applied general entry 31.6 - -

Key Stage 5 — English and maths (GCSE

resits) progress measure

Number of students at the end of 16-18 study in scope

for English progress measure 7 -
Average progress made in English -1 - -
Number of students at the end of 16-18 study in scope 26 i} i}
for maths progress measure

Aversge progress made in maths 0.42 - -

All three schools predicted increases in outcomes in 2020, when we expected exams fo take place. It was
particularly frustrating for the Year 11 students at TEMA not to get the chance to show what they really were
capable of during such a period of change and challenge at the school. Our schools were very careful not to
Inflate oulcomes through the generation of CAGs, and the national data did increase from 2019 In 2 way that
it wouldn't normally (given that the comparable outcomes system in operation now precludes this).

However, the improved progression at TEMA in subjects across the curriculum can be seen in the increase
in P8 score from -0.8 to -0.47 despite very litile change in the English and maths outcomes from 2018.

In the last year where national accountability data was published {2019) the Progress 8 scores {DFfE) at
Levenshulme and Whalley Range put them, respectively, in the top 0.5% and 5% of schools nationally,
which is a fantastic achievement for the Trust. The overall progress 8 scare of +0.58 for the Trust {DfE
compare schools and multi-academy trusts website publication) for schools which have been in the
organisation for 3 or more years (which includes TEMA) puts us at 5 position nationally — again, a
significant achievement.
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Education and Leadership Trust

Trustees’ Report (continued)

Levenshulme High School was inspected by Ofsted in October 2016 and judged to be Outstanding in &l
areas. Whalley Range 11-18 High School received a short inspection in April 2017 and continues to be
judged to be Good. The East Manchester Academy was inspected by Ofsted in December 2019 and judged
to require Special Measures. The inspectors recognised the high quality and strengths of the current senior
leadership team at the school; however, the quality, capacity and impact of governance at all levels was
severely criticised in the inspection and its report.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Ofsted suspended its normal inspection activity and so The Easi
Manchester Academy has yet to receive its first Her Majesty’s Inspector (HMI — of school) menitoring viskt. In
the time since the inspection, however, the school has made significant progress across ali of the areas for
improvement — including immediately addressing the safeguarding concerns raised around the use of
attendance codes for a small number of students. Improvements in safeguarding practice and impact and
the personal development curriculum have been validated by external review (including by ex-HMi who was
national lead on PSHRE and Citizenship) and the use of external review is continuing in these areas. There
has also been external review of SEND systems and training which has found significant improvement such
that the SEN register is now accurate and the needs of children with specific or additional needs are
increasingly being met. The period of COVID-19 lockdown actually presented a great opportunity for the
school to develop much stronger relationships with the families in Its community, which it has done
successfully and this had led to greater parental engagement and higher attendance levels since September
than previously, which is a significant achievement. -

Attendance monitoring for 2019-20 ended when lockdown commenced and so there is no direct comparison
that can be made with data either locally or nationaliy with previous years. Attendance had started to fall in
many schools in the week or two prior to start of lockdown as rumours about closures abounded and some
families began to keep children from school. The data for the period up to the start of lockdown is shown in
the table below, alongside the 2018/19 full year data. The data for nationa! attendance is always a year
behind, and the national figures in the table are for the full year 2018/19.

Attendance at two of our schools continued to be above the previous national average through the first part
of 2018-20. Attendance at TEMA was affected negatively by the inspection and the high number of students
excluded and unmet SEND need. For the first haif term of 2020-21, attendance at all three schools is higher
than national by some margin (national secondary attendance is below 90% at fime of writing and
attendance in our schools is between 94 and 96%).

Pupll attendance
(2018-20 I's until start WRHS LHS TEMA 535'3;’#55
of lockdown) |

2019-20 | 2018/19 | 2019-20 | 2018/19 | 2019-20 | 2018719
Overall 961% | 954% | 96.3% | 96.4% 92.8% 93.7% 94.5%
Pupil Premium 95.2% | 94.7% | 95.7% _959% | 91.4% 92.5% 91.8%
Non-Pupil Premium 96.8% | 96.1% | 96.8% 96.8% | 95.3% | 096.1% | B8556%

Other notable achievements across the Trust's academies during the year include:

* All academies are now over-subscribed at 11-16 and Sixth Form student numbers continue to be
maintained at Whailey Range.

» All schools have achieved excellent results in external competitions for: STEM {sciancs, technology
engineering and maths) work; debating; creative writing; and enterprise skills. Employers are really
impressed by their confidence, communication and teamwork skills.

» Whalley Range achieved the SSAT's Excelience in Education Award and The East Manchestar
Academy achieved a Quality Mark for Qutstanding PE provision. Levenshulme is a lead school in
Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) Careers Hub and has achleved the Leading
Parent Partnership Award. All three schools hold awards for their LGBTQ+ work.
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Trustees’ Report (continued)

Websites in all schools show the wide range of educational activities, extra-curricular activities and
achievements. We have hosted: authors; speakers who are from a wide range of career
backgrounds with very different personal stories; visitors from overseas Embassies; MPs and
business people who have all given up their time to talk to our students. The link with The Alliance
Manchesler Business School has enhanced these opportunities. All three schools usually provide
work experience for students in Year 10, howaver this was prevented by the COVID-19 lockdown in
2020.

The City of Manchester aspires to be one of the world's top ten digital cities and there are extensive
visits, experiences and visits by speakers to promote careers in STEM and the digital sector to our
students. We have strong links with partners in the City who are developing the digital curriculum,
and one of our Deputy Headteachers is part of the working group. In 2019-20 this programme was
cut short by the COVID-19 lockdown.

Despite the challenges of operating under COVID-19 restrictions, a number of refurbishment projects
have been undertaken at all three schools during the summer of 2020 to continue to provide
excellent teaching, learning and intervention classrooms and improved facilities for staff.

The response of staff across all three schools during the perlod of COVID-19 lockdown was
phenomenal, with significant innovation in IT and other resources and provision ensuring continuity
of education for students. The level and quality of communication with, and support for, families
throughout this time was exemplary — particularly for those of our most vulnerable students and
those with SEND. We were able to offer on-site provision for key students throughout lockdown,
although uptake was low (as was the case everywhere). All three schools welcomed back all
students in the target year groups (Y10 and Y12) during June/July, as expected by the DfE.

Staff in all three schocls worked tirelessly throughout the summer 'holidays’ to prepare for the
reopening of schools to all students in September. School leaders engaged fully with external
guidance and support, including the Health & Safety team at Manchester City Council and DfE/PHE
guidance, to put together the plans and associated risk assessments. Trustees were fully involved in
reviewing and agreeing the plans and risks assessments and the professional associations were
consulted in each school and at Trust level. Staff in all three schools were consulted throughout, with
developing pians shared reguiarly, and felt well-supported and well-informed as a result. The
contribution of siteffacilities teams has been remarkable throughout the pandemic period, dealing
with huge changes to practice and significant health and safety challenges with commitment and
skill.

Going Concern

The COVID-18 virus control measures have resulted in a number of additional expenses, both ane-off and
ongoing, including:

Additional resources to enable the students to access the curriculum from home, when the schools
were shut, and also since September 2020 due to periods of self-isolation.

Additional resources to enable the staff 1o teach live lessons from home, and also to create
additional teaching materials (including videos), when the schools were shut, and also since
September 2020 due to periods of self-isolation.

Significant increase in the amount of supply teacher cover required due to number of staff self-
isolating.

Additional resources such as text books, revision guides and pencil cases in order that students do
not have to share materials.

Increased cleaning regime, including additional day cleaners and specialist equipment.
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Trustees’ Report (continued)

*» Equipment, signage and other materials required to create Year Group "zones', including the
creation of additional dining and social spaces, exlernal seating, physical barriers to keap colleagues
safely distanced from each other, from students and from the public.

» Supplies of personal protective equipment (PPE) for all staff; supply of masks for students: additional
PPE for unavoidable close contact e.g. for first aiders.

* Temporary employment of additional catering staff due to changes to the school day resuiting in four
distinct break/lunch periods in four separate settings.

* Increased energy costs due to significantly increased ventitation in classrooms and social spaces.

We also plan to create more covered outdoor spaces through the addition of canopies.

Despite all these and numerous other measures, through careful management of ongoing budgets and its
raserves, the trust is sustainable financially for the foreseeable future.

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foresesable future. For this reasaon, it
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding
the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Promoting the success of the company

In 2019-20, the trust has acted in a way most likely to promote the success of the company, and in doing do
the trustees have had due regard to:

o the likely consequences of any decision in the long term: by ensuring tha! outcomes for pupils
continue to be good (or Improving), which sustains pupll rolls and therefore ongoing funding. Also,
continued Investment in the land and buildings via & programme of capial improvements,
refurbishments, re-developments and ongoing maintenance and repairs.

» the interests of the trust employees: continual focus on staff well-being via staff surveys;
consultation with trade unions, investment and opportunities for training and development; access to
apprenticeships at all levels; policy of paying Manchester Minimum Wage as a minimum.

» the need to foster the trust’s business relationships with suppllers, customers and others: all
three schools strive to communicate effectively with students and their families, as part of the frust's
commitment to provide all-round support, with the education and well-being of students at the heart
of all that we do. in the case of suppliers, we endeavour to support them within the parametars of
financial propriety of public funds, by ensuring that they are paid promptiy. In the case of some
smaller key suppliers, payments were made during lockdown, in line with the Government's
Procurement Policy Notes 01/20 and 02/20.

« the impact of the trust’s operations on the community and the environmant: the wider
community access the sports and leisure facilities at Levenshulme High School and The East
Manchester Academy, In addition, the trust has established good relationships with other
organisations sharing the schools’ sites; Acacias Community Primary School at Levenshulme High
School, Beswick Library at The East Manchester Academy, and GLL and Greater Manchester
Basketball Club at Range Stadium at Whalley Range 11-18 High School.
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Trustees’ Report {continued)

s the desirability of the trust maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct:
via following co-operative values, and also via applying high standards to all financial matters,
recognising the importance of sustaining good relationships with the Education & Skills Funding
Agency, the Regional Schools Commissioner and the Greater Manchester Local Authority.

» the need to act fairly as hetween members of the company: via following co-operative values,
maintaining a register of pecuniary interests for staff, governors, trustees, members, renewed
annually.

Financial Review

The majority of the trust and academy income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency
{ESFA) in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants
received from the ESFA in the year ended 31t August 2020 and the assoclated expendifure are shown as
restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

The frust also received grants from the ESFA and other organisations. in accordance with the Charities
Statement of Recommended Practice, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities' (SORP 2005), such grants
are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the restricted general fund and
fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by depreciation charges over the
expeclad useful life of the assets concarned,

During the year ended 31% August 2020, total expenditure of £27.4 million was incurred, which was covered
by the recurrent grant income from the ESFA, together with other incoming rescurces which fotalled £26
million. Total funds carried forward amount to £6.7 million. This is in line with the trust's strategy to build and
maintain adequate reserves to fund an ambitious plan of future improvements and development of the
organisation and its infrasiructure.

Unrestricted income and expenditure in the year ended 31% August 2020 amounted to £644,223 and £nil
respectively.

At 31% August 2020 the net book value of fixed assets amounted to £66.8 million and movements in fixed
assets are shown in note 12 of the financial statements. The cost of fixed asset additions in the year ended
318 August 2020 amounted to £659,245

Reserves Policy

The trust has a Reserves Policy, and the trustees review the level of reserves on an annual basis. This
review encompasses the nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with
commitments and the nature of the reserves. The trust’s current level of free reserves (total reserves less the
amounts held in fixed asset reserve and resfricted pension fund reserve) is £6.7 miliion. The amount is kept
secura for a time when it is needed to: selffinance short term deficits in annual budgets; restructuring of
operations; or funding capital projects, either by way of local contributions to grant aided schemes or fully
funding IT and other capital investment, for which no grants are available.

The trustees have decided to adopt a prudent approach fo reserves and aim to maintain a group reserve of
designated funds of at least 5% of annual income to safeguard against: unforeseen circumstances, capital
improvements or developments, late ESFA payments, emergencies and other catastrophes. This is sound
commercial practice designed fo safeguard the trust's business activities and quality of education at all the
academies in the trust.

Annual budgets are not usually subject to large in-year variances as most income is generated via pupill
numbers, measured in the proceeding financial year. As a significant proportion of spend is staffing, budgets
can be planned with a reasonable degree of accuracy, subject to fluctuations in in-year agency supply costs.
External alternative provision placements for students remain a more volatile/less predictable area of spend
but are relatively small when looked at Trust level.
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Trustees’ Report {(continued)

In addition, the net liability due lo the trust's participation in the Local Governmant Pension scheme (Graater
Manchester Pension Fund — GMPF) amounts to £11 million as measurad in line with the Accounting
Standard. In practical terms the trust is part of a pooled arrangament with Manchester City Councll and at
the last iriennlal valuation the pool was In surplus which has delivered a small reduction in the primary
confribution rate for the next three years Il should be notad, however, that an Immediate lisbility for deficit as
measured under accounting standards Is not crystallised at the financlal year end.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to guarantee that, in the event
of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18t July 2013. This guarantee provides
comfort for the trustees in the unlikely event of an academy closure.

Any surplus or deficit position of the LGPS pension scheme as measured at the triennial valuation would
generally result in a cash flow effect for the trust in the form of an increase or decrease in employers’
pensions contributions over a period of years.

The GMPF (LGPS) 2018-20 charge to Profit & Loss (P&L) Is based on financlal conditions at the start of the
year (i.e. essumptions as al 31* August 2018). The service cast and net Interest cost for 2019-20 should be
broadly in line with the projections made, as payroll has not changed materially, However, due to the lower
net discount rate at 31% August 2020, the projected 2020-21 charge to P&L Is likely lo increase compared to
2018-20,

Disclosure of funds in deficit is also included in Funds Note in financia! statements (note 15).

Investment Policy

Cash balances are safeguarded by Investing them in UK-based interest-bearing current and deposit
accounts with sound commercial banks (currently: Barclays Bank plc, Lloyds Bank PLC, Nationwide Buliding
Socisty).

Where cashflow identifies a base level of cash funds that will be surplus to requirements, this surplus may be
invested only in the following:

» Transfer to Instant Access Deposit or High Interest Daposit with current bankers or other UK banking
institutions regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

* Interest bearing deposit accounts (including fixed term bonds with a term not exceeding six months).
* Treasury deposlts, or other secure UK Government investment instruments,
* Manchester City Council and other local authority term deposit schemes.

»  COIF (Charities Investment Fund).

The day-to-day balances for the three schools and the trust are held at Lioyds Bank PI.C. Cash balances are
currently spraad across four institutions to reduce the impact of one or more of them failing {on a short or
long-term basis). In addition, the possible impact of the ongoing Brexit negotiations is being kept under
review.

The trust has significant sums on deposit with UK-based interest bearing accounts. Given the current poor
returns available, the insecurity of the UK economy, the uncertainty around Brexit and the FSCS lirnits of
£85,000 per account, the trust will look to place some funds on deposit with the Local Authority (Manchester
City Council) in the months ahead.
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Trustees’ Report {(continued)

Principal Risks and Uncsriainties

The principal risks to the Trust are documented and managed using a risk management register which is
raviewed at every Board meeting. In addition, individual risk registers are maintained and reviewed by the
Local Governing Body of each school, and are then reviewed in turn by the main Trust Board.

The main risks currently are:

Loss of reputation due to: a significant safeguarding or other incident affecting students and/or staff,
or; a drop in standards and academic performance.

Unexpected loss of key personnel; or failure to recruit sufficient subject specialist teachers.

Falling student numbers (e.g. due to changing local educational landscapse} and the Impact of
overstretched budgets and rising employee costs.

Fallure of IT systema/cyberattack; or failure to adequately protect data; or lack of accurate reliable
management information.

Significant deficit to a defined benefit pensicn scheme, leading to increased employer contributions.

Current COVID-19 pandemic, or other naticnal/local crisis subsequently, that significantly impacts on
schoals' ability to function normally for a significant period of time. This could have potential medium
and long-term impacts on finance (particularly around potential, significant and unprediciable cover
for staff absence), outcomes for students, and staff/student wellbeing.

Key controls in pace to mitigate these risks are:

Robust safeguarding policies, procedures and fraining, including safer recruitment and regular DBS
checks (which exceed the statutory minimum requirements).

Employee policies which are readily accessible to all staff, and regularly reviewed.
Ongoing Continuing Professional Development (CPD) and succession planning.
Detailed annual school development plans, including curriculum offer review.
Robust self-evaluation and student progress assessment procedures.

Good governance with documenied terms of reference for all Trust Committees and sub-
committees, and each Governing Body.

Organisation structures with clearly defined roles, responsibilities and authority levels.

Financial planning including budgeting and regular management reporting, highlighting any areas of
financiat risk.

Business continuity plans and procedures which are reviewed and updated regularly,
Comprehensive Covid-19 and Brexit risk assessments under regular review. Significant ongoing
investment in IT to facilitate remote teaching and learning.
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Fundralsing

There is a Trust Policy and Procedure for Charitable Coliections. All schools in the trust undertake a number
of fundraising activities for local and national charitles, and the framework for these is set at the beginning of
the academic/inancia year.

There Is a pre-approved list of charities for which staff and students may raise funds, which is reviewed
regularly. This includes fundraising for global emergencies, which must be for organisations which are faith-
neutral and support humanitarian aid.

All fundraising activities by staff and students must be for the benefit of a recognised charity or to benafil the
school community, for example in supporting a food bank.

Each school has a Charity Lead who is responsible for ensuring that all processes and procedures are
followed accurately, and that security of charitable funds raised is maintained at all times,

Funds ralsed for charities are separately identified, and monies paid directly to the verified bank sccounts of

the charity.
The COVID-19 closure and subsequent virus control measures has resulted in much reduced fundralsing

activities In all three schools in 2019-20.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August |

2020 .
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) 5,762,553
Energy consumption break down (kWh) (optional):

* gas Levenshulme High School
1,136,750

The East Manchester Academy
1,221,614

Whalley Range High School
1,259,561

» electricity Levenshulme High Schoo!
475,955

The East Manchester Academy
755,626

Whalley Range High School
913,047

* transport fuel Not available

Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Gas consumption 665.23
Owned transport — mini-buses =
Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Purchased electriclty 499.99
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e -
Business travel in employee owned vehicles
Total gross emissions in metric fonnes CO2e 1,165.22
Intensity ratio Tonnes CO2e per pupll 0.33
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Quantification and reporting methodology

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the
GHG Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2020 UK Government's Conversion Factors

for Company Reporting.
It hasn't been possible to produce transport data for the 2019-2020 return.

Systems are currently in place to collate this information for future year returns. This will involve collating
minibus usage and monitoring fuel expenditure.

Intensity measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions In metric tonnes COZ2e per pupil, the
recommended ratio for the sector.

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

The steps taken to improve energy efficient during the period include:
« The appointment of local authority energy team.
o The continued practice of upgrading lighting to LED.

¢ Condition Improvement Funding to replace the original windows at Levenshulme High School and
Whalley Range 11-18 High School in 2020-21.

e Condition improvement Funding bids in the 2021-22 round to repiace the original heating systems and
end-of-life boilers at Levenshulme High School and Whalley Range 11-18 High School, and replace
roof (including insulation) of Block C at Whalley Range 11 — 18 High School

Plans for Future Periods
Achievement

The Trust is committed to providing a broad, balanced, engaging and ambitious curriculum for all its
studants. The Trust does not consider the EBacc subjects to be appropriate for all students and will continue
to offer expert advice and guldance to help students make the best choices for their future aspirations and
career hopes.

Whalley Range 11-18 High School and Levenshulme High School need to continue to focus on always
matching or exceeding progress and attainment of giris nationally, rather than just comparing to national
averages, which include mixed gender schools, as girls tend to outperform boys nationally. In all three
achoola we need to match or exceed the outcomes for all ability bands and ensure that students in
vulnarable groups are at feast at successful as their peérs nationally.

In all three schools, continuous assessment needs to be securely in place which is evidence-based and
moderated such that we have a secure basis for any requirement to submit ‘Centre Assessed Grades’ or
similar if exams are cancelled again or modified to take account of centre assessment.

Sixth Form outcomes need to match or exceed naticnal pass rates and value added. At Whalley Range 11-
18 High School we need to continue to ensure improvediconsistently high value-added scores each year and
be able to show excellence in both progress and pass rates in all subjects. The economic viability of the
Sixth Form continues to be scrutinised to ensure it is cost neutral, and efficient in terms of costs versus
achievement. The curriculum offer in the Slxth Form Is under regular review, particularly currently as the
profile of post-16 provision in the city undergoes significant change.
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Attendance

Whalley Range 11-18 High School and Levenshulme High School need to continue to exceed national
averages (as a minimum) for attendance and to continue to achieve/better the benchmark for Persistent
Absentees. The East Manchester Academy needs to reach and sustain at least national averages for
attendance and Persistent Absenteeism then improve to match the other two schools.

Behaviour and Safeguarding

The standards of behaviour at The East Manchester Academy need to continue to improve, using the
strategies and partnerships developed during 2019-20 and post-inspection, such that learning can take place
effactively for all students and students feel safe in school. Safeguarding procedures at all thres schoals
must be exemplary at all times and the increasing Cross-Trust quality assurance and devalopment and
sharing of best practice, at both Executive Leader and governance levels, will enable and support {his.

Conduct and attitudes to learning at Levenshulme and Whalley Range must continue to be excellent, with
high levels of engagement in both learning and leadership among all students.

The continued strengthening of how we work with parents and community partners, including Manchesiar
Local Authority and the community of schools in the city, will be a key strand in this.

Ensuring that the needs of students with Special Needs are met, particularly those with
Social/Emotional/Mental Health needs, is a key focus in improving both behaviour and safeguarding at The
East Manchester Academy. This has improved markedly since the inspection in Dec 2019 and we expeact
that improvement trajectory to continue in 2020-21.

Succession planning and management development

Leaders at all levels are developed actively in all three schools — with review of needs and opportunitias
taking place regularly. Colleagues have access to a wide range of continued professional development
{(CPD) to support with this ~ including external programmes such as national professional qualifications
(NPQs), Teaching Leaders courses and involvement with the Ambition Institute. Cross-Trust in-house
leadership development programmes are also in place, including for aspirant colleagues, and the use of
shadowing and coaching is increasing. Middle leaders are encouraged to contribute/gain experience beyond
their own immediate area of responsibility, where ready. The most senior middle leaders (Heads of Faculty
and Heads of Progress/House) work closely with their peers at the other two schools in very practical as well
as strategic ways.

A new Executive Leadership team structure has been developed, giving strategic responsibilities across the
Trust to each Headteacher as well as to those empioyed in designated Trust roles. This has enhanced our
capacity to ensure that strategic and holistic development and review is in place, enabling more effective
talent and resource management and better facilitation of collaboration across all leveis of school leadership.
The Trust aims to be considered an employer of choice for staff by valuing commitment, creativity, diversily
and flexibility; enabling outstanding performance, providing continuous professional development and
promoting a high quality of work life. Innovative approaches to recruitment, such as a Trust-wide recruitment
fair have taken place and we have developed strong retfationships with both Initial Teacher Education (ITE)
providers of various sorts as well as organisations such as Teaching Leaders and Ambition Institute.

An annual, overarching staff (non-teaching and teaching) well-being and workload survey is carried out, as
well as other listening and co-construction activity with colleagues throughout the year; which helps us to
ensure that strategic development and planning aiso focuses on staff needs.

We have an annual whole-staff training day, which is very popular with colleagues across all roles. It
enables colleagues to develop their skills and expertise collaboratively with their peers from across the Trust
as wall as providing some very practical time to carry out evaluation and planning/development work
together. We also have some Twilight training sessions at other times of year which are at the same time, fo
facilitate joint working,
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Financial Strategy

s To review staffing structures and costs in all schools and to model, early in 2021, the costs of the
proposed curriculum for 2021-22 onwards.

e To review support and operations systems with a view to achisving efficiencies of scale.

s More focus on cross-trust tendering to ensure that the efficient use of resources is maximised
through trust working.

» The IT infrastructure has been strengthened in all schools and we will continue with significant
investment in new equipment and infrasiructure improvements.

» To maintain adequate financial reserves to fund building and other Infrastructure investment needs,

s To bid for Condition Improvement Funding (CIF) and other funding streams where eligible.

o The trust uses reserves to continually invest in the infrastructure of the buildings and facilities. In all
three schools we have brought forward the planned investment in IT infrastructure and will replace
all the main servers in 2020-2021. In addition, we have invested additional sums to provide devices
for students and staff in order to continue to provide a rebust IT platform across the trust.

Personal Development

We want our students to be confident and emotionally resilient young peopte who will be able to face up to
life’s challenges when they happen, as well as living lives in which they empathise with, and value, others

with lives and beliefs different from their own. Our personal development curriculum is values-driven and

places high expectations on students to be the best that they can be.

Each school has a well-planned and integrated personal development curriculum in place for 2020-21, which
includes the elements of Relationship and Sex Education (RSE) -updated to meet the new statutory
requirements for 2021- personal Health and Social Education (PSHE), citizenship and careers education and
guidance. The implementation and impact of the personal development curriculum at TEMA is currently
being reviewed by an external expert (ex-HMI and national lead at Ofsted for PSHE) and any
racommendations from this will be discussed for the other 2 schools as well. The first part of the review,
scrutiny of the new curriculum, found it to be a strong curriculum which is very well-resourced and age
appropriate and for which there is good training and support in place for staff. We make extensive use of
external partners, such as Manchester Healthy Schools and Greater Manchester (GM) Citizens and Kids of
Colour, to support with the delivery of this programme. We do not expect each school fo deliver the
programme in the same way or to have exactly the same content — the priorities and needs will shift and
evolve at each school and in its community and this curriculum must be astute and responsive to the
changing environment while still meeting statutory expectations.

Funds Held as Custodian Trustee on Behalf of Others

None
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Auditor
In so far as the trustees are aware:
* there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor Is unaware.

» the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The audit business Hallidays has been re-appointed as the company’s auditor for a further two-year
term. The audit report has been issued by Hallidays.

The Trustees' report, Incorporating a sirategic report, was approved by order of the board of trustees, as
the company directars, on 7™ Dacember 2020 and signed on the board's behalf by

Andrew S Mullen
Chair of Board

+ th 7
Date: 7" December 2020 //\ MM~
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Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility

As trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Education and Leadership Trust
has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstaterent or loss.

As trustees we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in the DfE's Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance, as well as the ESFA academies financial handbook. We have also
sought and acted on review and consultancy from National Leaders of Governance via the NGA and CST.
The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Executive Headteacher as
accounting officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good
financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the
funding agreement between Education and Leadership Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They
are also responsible for reporting to the board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal
control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the
Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The board of frustees had planned to formally meet four times
during the year, however the outcome of The East Manchester Academy inspection and then the impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic meant that a further five extraordinary meetings also took place. In 2020-21 there
are six full Board meetings scheduled. Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of trustees was
as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Ms E J Antrobus 9
Mr Dale Bassett
Mr Matthew Begg (resianed 29.01.2020)
Ms Jessica Bowles (resigned15.06.2020)
Ms M Dalton-Bartley (resigned 21.11.2019)
Ms Emma McLaren (appointed 05.05.2020)
Mrs Sandra Milne
| Mr A S Mullen (Chair and Member)
Mr Allan Torr {appointed15.06.2020)
Mrs Catherine Wraag (resigned 10.03.2020) |
Mr Ronan Brindley (Member) |
Mr R Paver (Member) |

DWW =20 |dIN|O|~N|oo| o0
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In addition to the Trust Board, there is a Trust Finance, Audit & Risk (FAR) sub-committee, which has
historically met four times per year and reviews all aspects of financial planning and monitoring, premises,
Health & Safety and Human Resources. In 2020-21 the FAR Committee will meet six times and will review
both the Trust and individual schools' risk registers. The other purpose of the Trust Finance, Audit & Risk
sub-commiites is to assist the Trust Board in fulfilling its responsibilities with regard to the financial and risk
management of the trust and maintenance of effective oversight of funds (as per Academies Financial
Handbook section 2.3).

The business conducted by these committees is reported into the Trust Board. Ms D L Collier attends these
mestings in her capacity as Trust Finance Officer. The Finance, Audit & Risk sub-committees have a
different chairperson from the main Board.

Trustee Finance Committee
Meetings attended , Out of a possible

Ms Emma Antrobus

Dr Johan MacKinnon {accounting officer}
Mr Andrew Mullen

Mr R Paver (Member)

Ms Jessica Bowles
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Whalley Range 11-18 High School and Levenshulme High School each have an Academy Committes, which
meets separately from the Trust Board five times per year and has a Trustee on the commiites. The East
Manchester Academy currently has an Interim Management Board {IMB} in place, following being placed
into Special Measures by Ofsted. Academy Committees and the IMB each have Terms of Referenca
approved by the Board. The Policy Committee has been reconstituted (which will meet four times per year)
and a Standards Committee set up (which will meet six times in 2020-21 ), each comprising three Trustees
and with agreed Terms of Reference. The Policy Commitiee held its first meeting in August 2020 and the
Standards Committee in October. The skills base of the Trust Board has been augmented to increass the
level of knowledge of 11-18 education and school improvement, through the appointment of new Trustess,
The Academy Committees all have a mix of types of governor, including parents and staff. The skill set of
Academy Committees and the Trust Board/members Is strong. The IMB is made up of five Individuals, two
of whom are paid at consultancy rates for this work, with the specific expertise and capacity to support TEMA
in improving rapidly. All Academy Committees and the IMB as well as Trust Board and its commitiees, are
professionally clerked via a contract with One Education.

The outcome of the Ofsted inspection of The East Manchester Academy led to significant activity to improve
and secure consistent high-quality governance, particularly at Trust Board level, throughout the remainder of
the year. It also led to significant challenge by the office of the Regional Schools Commissioner {RSC) about
the Trust's capacity to support and improve the school at the rate and depth needed, including the
publication of a termination warning notice for The East Manchester Academy's membership of ELT. The
RSC has yet to make her final decision about the future of the school as the timeline has been affected by
the COVID-19 pandemic and its impact.

A full review of governance was carried out by a National Leader of Governance, commissioned through the
NGA, and a report published from this review containing a range of recommendations. The Board then
commissioned further review from CST, again by a National Leader of Governance, who also provided
advice and support and facilitated the Trustee and Member workshop in September. The key, immediate
priorities from these reviews were identified as:

» Develop a strategic plan 1 year to 3 year.
¢ Create a Curriculum/Standards committee,

» Decide on metrics, KPls and data the Board wants presented by Executive and how
prasented/monitored.

» Provide clarity on the role of the Academy Committees.
» Provide independent/peer school assessment reports that comes to Board/committee.

* Chair to have his key contacts between meetings and let Trustees develop their voices.

Based on these reviews, a Governance Development Plan was produced and used to direct the immiediata
improvements needed — these actions have been fulfilled and the medium to longer term actions and impact
are being monitored throughout 2020-21, The relationship with CST, and associated support, training and
review work, will continue throughout 2020-21 and will include review of the impact of changes made.

There is an annual trust Saturday seminar, usually heid in June, which focuses on seli-review and
development of governance as well ag an opportunity to look at the development plans of all three schools
for the coming year. This was rendered impossible this year by the COVID-19 pandemic. The Trustees' and
Members’ virtual workshop in September 2020, mentioned above, reviewed and recrafled the Trusts’ values
and vislon statements and identified the strategic priorities for 2020-21 and 2020-23. Priorities from the
Strateglc plan align, where appropriate, with priorities in each school's own development plan and with
Headteacher appraisal objectives. The original ELT Articles of Association have been-replaced by the DfE
model articles, and this change was approved by the DfE in September 2020. The Scheme of Delegation
has been substantially updated and changed to meet expectations and will be reviewed again during 2020-
21.
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Governance Statement {continued)

All committees now have agreed Terms of Reference which detail their role and remit and which are subject
to regular review. These have been used with Academy Commitiees to develop thelr understanding and
enhance thelr ability to fulfil their role, and will be complemented by other training such as NGA onlina
modules.

The Board has also reviewed the structure and content of the data received by the Board about its schools,
increasing its scope to ensure that all elements that could inform Trustees about safeguarding and statutory
issues, as well as achievement, are included, clear and comparative (between schools and with naticnal
data, where available). The establishment of the Standards Commitiee also provides the opportunity for
greater scrutiny of both academic and behaviour data by the Trustees with the most knowledge and
experience of schools. Report structures used by the Executive Headteacher and Headteachers have also
been reviewed, to ensure focus is on key indicators and actions being taken to address emerging gaps or
concerns. Compariscn of these structures and the data contained therein with those used by other
acadamias has reassured executive leaders and Trustees about the appropriateness and utility of the data.
A full warkplan/schedule of activity for the year has been put in place for the Board and its committees
including Academy Committees and the IMB. This supports coherent and comprehensive management and
fulfilment of the responsibilities of each group of Trustesa/governors and enables the Executive and senior
school leaders to manage their responsibilities towards the tiers of governance.

There has also been a planned increase in co-ordination of the work of the named safeguarding Trustee and
governors, through a member of the Executive leadership team and the Designated Safeguarding Leads
from each school. This allows greater assurance of the quality of safeguarding as well as confidence in the
data and other information used. Chairs of Board and school-level committees also now meet to co-ordinate
the work of each group through the year and assure consistency and sharing of good practice.

Review of Value for Money

As accounting officer, the Executive Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust
delivers good value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money
refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.
The accounting officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the academy trust has
delivered improved value for money during the vear by:

+ Detailed review of teacher staffing requirements in the context of changing natlonal curriculum and
examination requirements.

* Review of support roles to evaluate potential for economies of scale/shared staffing as opportunities
arise.

¢+ Compliance with a comprehensive Competitive Tendering Policy.
+ Cross-trust supplier contracts to achieve economies of scale and cost reductions.

s Use of highly-skilled staff in all three schools.

The focus on cross-trust tendering will continue in 2020-21 and beyond to ensure that the efficient use of
resources is maximised through Trust working.

Impact of COVID-19

As a publicly funded institution, the Government was clear that, as the trust continued to receive full funding,
despite school closures, we should ensure that we continued to pay our staff and, where appropriate, our
suppliers (including non-employed staff).
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Governance Statement {continued)

In practice, for Education and Leadership Trust, the outcome was, in terms of staffing:
¢ almost all employed staff were paid in full.

« the exception to this were the staff employed solely to operate the Energy Box at Levenshulme High
School. These staff were furloughed with effect from 1st May 2020 until 24t July 2020.

» we continued to pay agency staff where a medium-to-long-term date was originally committed, Some
agency staff were paid up to Easter, some to May half-term, some to the predicted return date of the
postholder (e.g. maternity cover), and a very small number to the end of the term (312t August 2020).

* Intwo cases, the result was that the trust pald for an agency person, despite the person who was
being covered (for long-term sick) subsequently declaring themseives fit for work.

Procurement Policy Notes 01/20 and 02/20

In line with these directives, the following payments were aiso made in order to secure continuity of supply of
critical services in the medium and long term:

+ Fees for students at Alternative provision settings.
» Examination board fees.
» External examination invigilators based on the original external examination timetable.
¢ Peripatetic music teachers ~ some were paid directly by the trust and some via a third-party supplier.
¢ School counseliing services
The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable leval rather than to eliminate all
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of trust policies, aims and objectives, to
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage
them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in piace in Education
and Leadership Trust for the period 1st September 2018 to 31st August 2020 and up to the date of approval
of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of trustees
is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the trust's
significant risks that has been in place for the period 1st September 2019 to 31st August 2020 and up to the
date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the
board of trustees.

The Risk and Contrel Framework

The trust's system of internal financlal control is based on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular it Includes:

« comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees;
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Governance Statement (continued)

» regular reviews by the finance, audit and risk committee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes;

» setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
+ clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
s [dentification and management of risks.

The board of trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has appointed
Manchester City Council's Internal Audit and Risk Management team as internal auditor.

The Internal Auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on
the academy trust's financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

¢ testing of payroll systems
» testing of purchasa systems

» testing of control account/ bank reconciliations

On a regular basis, the internal Auditor reports to the board of trusiees, through the Finance, Audit & Risk
Committes, on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the board of trustees’ financial
responsibilities and prepares an annual summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key
findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess year on year

progress.

The Internal Auditor has delivered their schedule of work, and found some control issues which are being
addressed by strengthened controls. None of the issues identified present a significant risk to the trust's
operations and financial management procedures.

Raview of Effectiveness

As accounting officer the Executive Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

« the work of the internal auditor
s the work of the external auditor
s the school resource management self-assessment tool

+ the work of the executive managers within the trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework

The aceounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of
internal control by the Finance & Audit Committee and a plan o address weaknesses and ensure
continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 7" December 2020 and signed on its
behalf by:

T e — UM’/&LWPL{-R

Andrew S Mullen Johan MacKinnon
Chair of Board Accounting Officer
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of Education and Leadership Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the
trust board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material Imegularity,
impropriaty and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust,
under the funding agresment in place betweer! the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education.
As part of my consideration | have had dus regard to the requirements of the Academles Financial
Handbook 2019,

t confirm that | and the trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
trust’s funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2018,

I confirm that no instances of material iregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date. if any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be noatifiad to the
board of trustees and ESFA,

Johan MacKinnon

. ]
Accounting Officer ; i R i .
7' December 2020 | {ﬂ- ‘étrw I~
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Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities

The trustees {who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annuai
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdem Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company
law the trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of
resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these flnancial statements, the
trustees are required to:

s select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

» observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2019 to 2020

* make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the charitable company will continue in business

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitabie company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitabie company applies
financlal and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for
the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 7' December 2020 and signed on its behaif

by:

Andrew S Mullen
Chair of Board
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
Education and Leadership Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Education and Leadership Trust (the 'Academy’) for the
year ended 31 August 2020, which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating
Income and Expenditure Account, Balance Sheet, Statement of Cash Flows, and Notes to the
Financial Statements, including 2 summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdem
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102
‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland'.

In our opinion the financial statements:

* give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy trust's affairs at 31 August 2020 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the
year then ended;

» have been properly preparsd in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice;

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academiss Accounts
Direction 2019 to 2020.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditars
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Academy in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK} require
us to report to you where:

+ the Trustees use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

* the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncernainties
that may cast significant doubt about the Academy's ability to continue to adopt the going concem
basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the firancial
statements are authorised for Issue.

Other Information (covers the Reference and Administrative Detalls, the Trustees’ Report and
the Governance Statement)

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
Education and Leadership Trust (continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
migstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinien, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the Trustees' Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the Trustees' Report been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires

us to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kepf, or returns adequate for cur audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
« certain disclosures of Trustees remuneration specified by law are not made; or
» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities [sel out on page 28], the
Trustees are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsibie for assessing the Academy's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the
Academy or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financilal statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs {(UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecled to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional sceplicism throughout the audit. We also:

Page 30



Ecuzation and Leaderstip Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financia! Siatements to the Members of
Education and Leadership Trust (contiriued)

+ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due io
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive (0 those risks, and obtain audi
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The nsk of not
detecling a materiai misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may Involve collusicn, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the oveyride
of internal control

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Academy’s Internal control

+  Evaluate the approgriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Trustees

« Conclude an the appropriateness of the Trustees use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence abizined, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or canditions that may cast significant doubt on the Acacamy's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a matenal uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atlention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, iIf such disclesures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report However, future events or conditicns may cause the Academy fo
cease to continue as a going concern

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financiai statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financizl statemenis represent the underlying transacticns and
events In @ manner that achieves fair prasentation

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Academy to express an cpinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Academy audit. We remain sclely
responsible for our audit opinion

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal centrol that we 1dentify dunng our audit.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy's Trustees, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Academy's trustees those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose To the fullest exteni permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility o
anycne other than the Academy and its Trustees, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed

Al Sk
Anna Bennett (Senior Statuiory Auditor)
For and cn behalf of Hallidays, Statutory Auditor

Riverside House

Kings Reach Business Park
Yew Street

Stockport

SK4 2HD
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
Education and Leadership Trust (continued)

16 December 2020
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Repori on Reguiarity to Education and
Leadership Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 31 July 2020 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies
Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020, we have carried out an engagement to obtain mited assurance
about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by Education and Leadership Trust
during the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have been applied to the purposes identified
by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report i1s made solely to Education and Leadership Trust and the ESFA in accerdance with the
terms of our engagement letter Our work has been undertaken so that we may state to Education
and Leadership Trust and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than Education and Leadership Trust and ihe ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for
the conclusion we have formed

Respective responsibilities of the Governing Body's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The Accounting Officer Is responsible, under the requirements of the Trust Board's funding agreement
with the Secretary of State for Education dated 27 August 2014 and the Academies Financial
Handbook extant from 1 September 2019, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income
received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to
the authorities which govern them

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our professien’s
ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement
letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020. We report to you
whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material
respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year from 1 September 2019 to 31
August 2020 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2020
issued by ESFA, We performad a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain
information and explanations 10 order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a
negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement
and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in a reasonabie assurance engagement. Accordingly, we
do not express a positive opinion

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and
propriety of the academy trust's income and expenditure

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes

«  We have confirmed that the activities conform to the trust's framework of authorities As identified
by review of minutes, management accounts, discussion with the accounting officer and other key
management personnel

+  We have carried out an analytical review as part of the consideration of whether general activities
of the trust are within the trust's framework of authorities

+ We have considered the evidence supporting the accounting officer's statement on reguiarity,
propriety and compliance and have evaluated the general control environment of the trust and
extended the procedures required for financiai statements to include regularity
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to Education and
Leadership Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (continued)

+ We have assessed and tested a sample of the specific control activities over regularity of a
particular activity, In performing sample testing of expenditure, we have considered whether the
activity is permissible within the trust's framework of authorities. We confirm that each item tested
has been appropriately authorised in accordance with the trust's delegated authorities and that the
internal delegations have been approved by the Trust Board and conform to the limits set by the
Department for Education

+ Formal representations have been obtained from the governing body and the accounting officer
acknowledging their responsibilities including disclosing all non-compliance with laws and
regulations specific to the authorising framework, access to accounting records, provision of
information and explanations, and other matters where direct evidence Is not available

+ In performing sample testing of expenditure, we have reviewed against specific terms of grant
funding within the funding agreement. We have reviewed the list of suppliers and have considered
whether supplies are from related parties and have reviewed minutes for evidence of declaration of
interest, and whether or not there was involvement in the decision to order from this supplier.

+  We have performed sample testing of other income and tested whether activities are permitted
within the trust's charitable objects

Conclusion

tn the course of our work, nothing has come tc our attention which suggests that in all material
respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year from 1 September 2019 to
31 August 2020 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them

Reporting Accountant

Hallidays

Chartered Accountants
and

Registered Auditors

Riverside House

Kings Reach Business Park
Yew Street

Stockport

SK4 2HD

16 December 2020
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Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Note

Income and endowments from:

Donations and capital
grants

Charitable activities:

Funding for the
Academy trust's
educational operations

Other trading activities
Investments

Total
Expenditure on:

Charitable aclivities:

Academy trust
educaticnal operations

Net
income/(expanditure)

Transfers between
funds

Other recognised
gains and losses
Actuarial (losses) /
gains on defined benefit
pension schemes

Net movement in
funds/(deficit)

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds/(deficit)
brought forward at 1
September 2019

Total funds/(deficit)
carried forward at 31
August 2020

2

[4 ] N

25

Restricted
Restricted Restricted Fixed

Unrestricted General Pension Asset 2019720
Funds Funds Funds Funds Total

£ £ £ £ £
225 72,770 - 505,511 578,606
- 24,820,855 - - 24,820,855
609,968 45,093 - - 655,081
34,030 - - - 34,030
8§44 223 24,938,718 - 505,511 26,088,452
- 24,627,509 1,248,000 1,601,260 27,376,758
644,223 411,209  (1,248,000) (1,095,738) (1 ,288,307)
(99,435) {448,655) - 548,090 -
- - {2,215,000) - (2,215,000)
544,788 (37,446) (3,483,000) (547,649) (3,503,307)
4,686,147 1577464 (7,614,000} 67,848,978 656,408,680
5,230,935 1,640,018 (11,077,000) 67,301,329 62,095,282
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Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2019
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Note

Income and endowments from:

Donations and capital
grants 2

Charitable activities:

Funding for the
Academy trust's
educational operations 3

Other trading activities 4
Investments 5

Total
Expenditure on:

Charitable activities:

Academy trust
educational operations 7

Net
incomef{expenditure)

Transfers between
funds

Other recognised
galns and losses
Actuarial (losses) /
gains on defined benefit

pension schemes 25

Net movement in
funds/(deficit)

Reconcillation of funds

Total funds/(deficit)
brought forward at 1
September 2018

Total funds/(deficit)
carried forward at 31
August 2019

Restricted
Restricted Restricted Fixed

Unrestricted General Pension Asset 2018/19

Funds Funds Funds Funds Total

£ £ £ £ £
- - - 253,848 253,848
- 23,567,236 - - 23,567,236
899,815 90,357 - - 990,172
37,895 - - - 37,885
937,710 23,667,593 - 253,848 24,849,151
- 24,419,466 993,000 1,855,802 27,268,268
937,710 (761,873) (993,000) (1,801,954} (2,418,117)
(478,847) 239,117 - 239,730 -
- - (3,017,000) - (3,017,000)
458,863 (522,756) (4,010,000) (1,362,224) (5436,117)
4227284 2,100,220 (3,604,000) 69,211,202 71,934,706
4688147 1577464 (7,614,000) G7,848078 66408530
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Education and Leadership Trust

(Registration number: 08913502)
Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2020

2020 2019
Note £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12 66,832,829 67,774,834
Current assets
Debtors 13 1,295,215 855,478
Cash at bank and in hand 7,366,414 8,122,530
8,661,629 6,978,008

Creditors: Amounts falfing due within one year 14 (1,422,176) (840,253)
Net current assets 7,239,453 8,337,756
Total assets less current liabilities 74,072,282 74,112 688
Net assets excluding pension liability 74,072,282 74,112,589
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 25 {11,077,000) (7,614,000}
Net assets including pension liability 62,995,282 86,498,580
Funds of the Academy Trust:
Restricted funds
Restricted general fund 15 1,540,018 1,577,464
Restricted fixed asset fund 15 67,301,329 67,848,878
Restricted pension fund 15 (11,077,000) (7,614,000)

57,764,347 61,812,442
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general fund 15 5,230,935 4,688,147
Total funds 62,995,282 66,408,589

Tha financlal statements on pages 35 to 67 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue

on Z4ke..i4%7 and signed on their behalf by:

Mr Andrew S Mullen
Trustee
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Education and Leadership Trust

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

2020 2019
Note £ £

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cagh provided by operating activities 19 1,363,588 505,016
Cash flows from investing activities 20 (119,704) (526,633)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year 1,243,884 (21,517)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 6,122,530 8,144,047
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 21 7,366,414 6,122,530
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Education and Leadership Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

1 Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basls of preparation

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by ESFA,
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Golng concemn

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the company to continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment In respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existenca
for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to
continue as a going concem, thus they continue to adopt the going concemn basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the Trust has entitiement to the funds, certainty of receipt
and the amount can be measured with sufficient reliability.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of entitlement of receipt its
recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income. Where entitiement occurs before
income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any unspent amount is reflected as a balance in the restricted general fund.

Capital grants are recognised when there is entitiement and are not deferred over the life of the asset
on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in the
restricted fixed asset fund,

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided fo the Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no
penormance-related conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably,
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Education and L.eadership Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(continued)

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period i is receivable and to the
extent the academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

The value of donated services and gifts in kind provided to the Trust are recognised at their open
market value in the period in which they are receivable as incoming resources, where the benefit to
the Trust can be reliably measured. An equivalent amount is included as expenditure under the
relevant heading in the Statement of Financial Activities, except where the gift in kind was a fixed
asset in which case the amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated
over the useful aconomic life in accordance with the Trust's policies.

Transfer of existing academies into the trust

Where assets and liabilities are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the academy
trust, the transferred net assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the
point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the academy trust. An equal amount of income
is recognised for the transfer of an existing academy into the academy trust within Donations and
capital grant income to the net assets acquired.

Donated fixed assets (excluding Transfers into the Trust)

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to
measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is
recognised as income from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed
asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the academy trust's

accounting policies.

Expendlture

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in setlement and the
amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of
each activity are made up of the fotal of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
fo that activity. Shared costs which contribute o more than one aclivity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irecoverable VAT.

Expenditure on raising funds

Thig includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes
and includes costs of all fundraising acfivities events and nen-charitable trading.
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Education and Leadership Trust

Notes fo the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Charitable actlvities

These are costs incurred on the academy Irust's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the govemance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreclation and any provision for impairment. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with
the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the private sector, they are inciuded in
the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life. The related
grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried
forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on such assets is charged to the restricted fixed asset
fund In the Statement of Financial Activities so as to reduce the fund over the useful economic life of
the related asset on a basis consistent with the Trust's depreciation policy. Where tangible fixed
assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the
unrastricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to
write off the cost of each asset over its expected useful lives, per the table below.

Agset class Depreciation method and rate
L.easehold Land 0.8% (125 years) straight line
Buildings 2% straight line

Fixtures and Fittings 20% straight line

Computer Equipment 33.33% straight line

Motor vehicles 25% straight line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances Indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Liabllities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settiement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy
trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for
the goods or services it must provide.
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Education and Leadership Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result
of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Taxatlon

The Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
258 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
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Education and Leadership Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Pension benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme ('TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit

schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prespeciive unit
credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS s treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net Income/{expenditure) are
the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Depariment for
Education.

Restricted pension funds comprise all income, costs and actuarial valuations associated with the
Local Government pension scheme {LGPS).

Critlcal accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaiuated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, Including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
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Education and Leadership Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
{continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimales and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Govemment Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 25, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects resuits from the latest full
actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions
liability at 31 August 2020. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach
and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Financial Instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets
and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 13. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounts due to the charity’s wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value,

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 14. Taxation and soclal security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial
liability, as the cash settlement has already faken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to charity’s whoily owned subsidiary
are held at face value less any impairment.

2 Donations and capital grants

Rostricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset 2019/20 2018/19
funds funds funds Total Total
£ £ £ £ £

Educational trips
and visits - 44 952 - 44,952 -
Capital grants 5 5 505,511 506,511 253,848
Other donations 225 27818 - 28,043 -

225 72,770 505,511 §78,508 253,848
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(continued)

3 Funding for Trust's educational operations

DfE/ESFA revenue grants
General annual grant (GAG)
Other DFE/ESFA grants

Other government

grants

Local authority grants

Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme Grant

Coronavirus Exceptional Support

Non-govarnment
grants and other Income

Non-government grants

Total grants

Restricted 2019/20 201819
funds Total Total
£ £ £
21,698,205 21,698,205 21,435,020
2,808,702 2,808,702 1,858,835
24,506,907 24 506,907 2312084 055
246 401 246,401 266,960
16,584 16,584 -
50,963 50,963 -
313,948 313,948 265,960
- - 5,321
24,820,855 24,820,855 23,687,236

The academy trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in year from government support
schemes in response to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above under
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme Funding & Coronavirus exceptional support.
- The academy furloughed some of its heaith & fitness staff under the government's CJRS. The
funding received of £16,584 relates to staff costs in respect of 9 staff which are included within note 8

below.

- The funding received for Coronavirus exceptional support covers £50,963 of reclaimed costs. These
costs are included in notes 6 and 7 as appropriate.

4 Other trading activities
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{continued)
4 Other trading activities {continued)
Unrestricted Restricted 2019/20 201819
funds funds Total Total
£ £ £ £
Hire of facilities 83,685 - 83,685 138,027
Catering income 316,916 - 315916 479,629
Other sales 50,087 - 50,087 203,261
Energy box membership income 75,701 - 75,701 38,082
Insurance income 81,493 {1) 81,492 28,122
Other income 3,086 4,765 7,851 67,643
Teacher training - 40,328 40,329 34,408
609,968 45,093 655,061 880,172
5 Investment income
Unrestricted 2019/20 201819
funds Total Total
£ £ £
Bank interest 34,030 34,030 37,895
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(continued)

6 Resources expended
Non Pay Expenditure

2019720 2018119
Staff costs Premises Other costs Total Total
£ £ £ £ £
Academy's
educational
operations
Direct costs 16,459,781 1,329,084 2,189,919 19,078,784 20,007,081
Allocated support
costs 4,021,717 2,108,269 1,267,989 7,397,975 7,281,187

20,481,498 3,437,353 3,457,908 27,376,759 27,268,268
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6 Resources expended (continued)

(continued)

Net Incomel{expenditure) for the vear includes:

Operating leases - other leases
Fees payable to auditor - audit
- pther audit services
Depreciation

7 Charitable activities

Direct costs - educational operations
Support costs - educational operations

Analysis of support cosis
Support staff costs
Depreciation

Premises costs

Legal costs - other

Other support costs
Governance costs

Total support costs

2019/20 201819
£ £
26,327 65,043
11,750 11,682
6,000 10,068
1,601,250 1,855,802
Total Total
2020 2019
£ £
19,978,784 20,007,081
7,397,975 7,261,187
27,376,759 27,268,268
Educational 2019/20 2018/19
operations Total Total
£ £ £
4,021,717 4,021,717 3,738,392
272,166 272,166 273,149
1,836,103 1,836,103 1,847,142
13,536 13,536 -
1,196,298 1,196,298 1,384,674
58,155 58,155 17,830
7,397,975 7,387,975 7,261,187
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8 Staff
Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were:
Wages and salaries

Social security costs

Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Severance payments

Non statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments
Included in staff restructuring costs are non

(continued)

£37,634 (2019: £51,033). Individually, the payments were:

Non-contractual payments £16,871
Non-contractual payments £20,653

Staff numbers

20119/20 2018/19
£ £
14,551,846 14,699,425
1,502,725 1,506,373
3,999,955 3,172,586
20,054,526 19,377,384
388,438 581,871
37,534 51,033
20,481,498 20,010,088
2020 2019
E £
37,634 51,033

-staiutory/nen-contractual severance payments totalling

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:

Teachers
Administration and support
Management
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Education and Leadership Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(continued)

8 Staff {continued)
Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2020 2018

No No
£60,001 - £70,000 6 6
£70,001 - £80,000 6 7
£80,001 - £90,000 3 1
£80,001 - £100,000 2 1
£120,001 -£130,000 1 -

£140,001 - £150,000
Koy management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trusiees and the senior
management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer
pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management
personnel for their services to the academy trust was £2,735,037 (2019: £2,528,501).
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(continued)

9 Central services

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:
* Financial management

+» Governance

* Leadership support

The academy trust charges for these services on the following basis:
Trust Central Costs - split on the basis of pupil numbers in each school:

* Salary (including on-costs) of Executive Headteacher

* Part of the salary (including on-costs) of Trust Finance Officer

* Part of the salary (including on-costs) of Trust HR Director

* Audit: External and Internal

« Clerking, legal fees and other costs associated with Trust Board

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2020
£

Levenshulime High School 114,241
Whalley Range 11-18 High School 127,743
The East Manchester Academy 150,469

382,453
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10 Related party transactions - trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from employment
with the Academy Trust. The executive headteacher and other staff trustees only receive
remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of executive headteacher and
staff members under their contracts of employment.

The value of trustees’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows:
Ms Patricia Denise Kane (Excutive Headteacher & Accounting Officer):

Remuneration: £Nil (2019 - £140,000 - £145,000)
Employer's pension contributions: £Nil (2019 - £20,000 - £25,000)

Mr Matthew Begg (Staff director 01.09.2015 to 29.01.2020):

Remuneration: £15,000 - £20,000 (2019 - £40,000 - £45,000)
Employer's pension contributions: £0 - £5,000 (2019 - £5,000 - £10,000)

Dr Johan MacKinnon (Executive Headteacher & Accounting Officer):

Remuneration; £120,000 - £125,000 (2012 - £Nil)
Employer's pension contributions: £25,000 - £30,000 (2019 - £Nil)

Catherine Elizabeth Wragg (Deputy headteacher 01.09.2019 to 10.03.2020):

Remuneration: £35,000 - £40,000 {2019 - £65,000 - £70,000)
Employer's pension contributions: £5,000 - £10,000 (2019 - £5,000 - £10,000)

No other trustees received any remuneration or expenses.
Other related party transactions involving the trustees are set out in note 26.

11 Trustees' and officers' insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA),
an alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
members/trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring
whilst on Academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the
membears/trustess and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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(continued)

12 Tangible fixed assets

Freehold Leasehold Fixtures,

land and land and plant and Computer

buildings buildings equipment hardware Total

£ £ £ £ £

Cost
At 1 September
2019 27,108,612 43,701,302 2,522,131 2,061,068 75,393,114
Additions - - 299,111 360,134 859,245
At 31 August 2020 27,108,612 43,701,302 2,821,242 2,421,203 76,052,359
Depreciation
At 1 September
2019 1,177,574 3,341,630 1,468,450 1,630,626 7,618,280
Charge for the year 236,853 843,352 270,079 250,966 1,601,250
At 31 August 2020 1,414 427 4,184,982 1,738,529 1,881,502 9,219,530
Net book value
At 31 August 2020 25,604,185 39,516,320 1,082,713 539,611 66,832,820
At 31 August 2019 25,931,038 40,359,672 1,053,681 430,443 67,774,834

13 Debtors

Trade debtors
VAT recoverable
Other debtors
Prepayments
Accrued incoma
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2020 2019
£ £

126,967 137,260
150,632 106,845
41,862 13,168
304,033 257,894
671,621 340,311
1,295,215 855,478
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(continued)

14 Creditors: amounts falling due withih one year

Trade creditors
Other creditors
Accruals
Defarred income

Deferred Income

Deferred income at 1 September 2019

Resources deferred in the period

Amounts released from previous periods
Deferred income at 31 August 2020

2020 2019
£ £
732,761 68,915
53,272 46,610
578,014 517,035
58,129 7,693
1422178 640,253
2020 2018
£ £
7,693 5,317
58,129 7,663
(7,693) (5,317)
58,129 7,693

At the balance sheet date the trust was holding funds received in advance in respect of rates relief

and other non government grants

15 Funds

Restrictad general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Other DFE/ESFA grants

Pupil premium

Other income

Restricted fixed asset funds
DIE/ESFA capital grants
Capital expenditure from GAG
Transfer on conversion

Other capital income

Balance at Gains,

1 losses Balance at
September Incoming Resources and 31 August
2019 resources expended transfers 2020
£ £ £ £ £
1,677,464 21,698,205 (21,363,306) (448,655) 1,463,708

- 1,260,095 (1,183,785) - 76,310

- 1592678 (1,592,678) - -

- 387,740 {387,740) - -
1,677,464 24938718 (24,527 509) {448,655) 1,540,018
19,028,356 505,511 {(457,595) - 19,076,272
3,358,732 - (78,681) 548,000 3,828,141
45,371,122 - (1,062,850) - 44,308,272
90,768 - (2,124) - 88,644
67,848,978 505511 (1,601,250) 548,000 67,301,329
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15 Funds (continued)

Rastricted pension funds
Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general funds

Total funds

Balance at Gains,

1 losses Balance at
September Incoming Resources and 31 August
2019 resources expended transfers 2020
£ £ £ £ £
(7,614,000) - (1,248,000) (2,215,000) (11,077,000}
61,812,442 25444229 (27,376,759) (2,115,565) 57,764.347
4,686,147 644,223 - (99,435) 5,230,835
66,498,666 26,088,452 (27,376,759) (2,215,000) B2 005282

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Other DfE/ESFA grants
Pupil premium

Other income

Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE/ESFA capital grants
Capital expenditure from GAG
Transfer on conversion

Other capital income

Restricted pension funds
Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general funds

Total funds

Balance at Galns,

1 losses Balance at
September Incoming Resources and 31 August
2018 resources expended transfers 2019
£ £ £ £ £
1,677,464 21,435,020 (22,196,893) 239,117 1,054,708

S 268,798 {268,798) - -

- 1,586,298 (1,586,298) - -

- 367,477 (367,477) S .
1,677,464 23,857,593 (24,419,466) 239,117 1,054,708
19,028,356 253,848 (520,598) - 18,761,608
3,358,732 - (91,410) 239,730 3,507,052
45,371,122 - (1,241,311) - 44,129,811
90,768 - {2,483) - 88,285
67,848,978 253,848 {1,855,802) 239,730 6B ,486,754
(7,614,000) - {993,000) (3,017,000) (11,624,000)
61,812,442 23,911,441 (27,268,268} (2,538,153) 55,917,462
4,686,147 937,710 - {478,847) 5,145,010
66,408,568 24,849,151 (27,268,268) (3,017,000) 61,082,472
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15 Funds {(continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant must be used for the normal running expenses of an Academy and any
amounts carried forward at the end of the financial year must be in accordance with the terms of the

Funding Agreement.

Other DFE/ESFA grants comprise additional funding received for the furtherance of education, which
must be used in accordance with the specific terms of each grant.

Other government grants include LA funding for High Needs & LAC pupil premium

Other restricted funds include contributions received for educational visits and non public donations
and the related expenditure.

The pension reserve represents the value of the Academy's share of the deficit in the Local
Government Pension Scheme. The deficit at 1 September 19 was £7,614,000 and had risen to
£11,077,000 at 31 August 2020.

Restricted fixed assets funds are those funds relating to the long term assets of the Academy used in
delivering the objects of the Academy.

Unrestricted funds are funds which the Trustees may use in the pursuance of the Academy's
objectives and are expendable at the discretion of the Trustees.
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Education and Leadership Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

(continued)

16 Analysis of net assets between funds
Fund balances at 31 August 2020 are represented by:

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted general fixed asset .
funds funds funds Total funds
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assels - - 66,832,829 66,632,829
Current assets 5,230,935 2,962,194 468,500 8,661,629
Current liabilities - (1,422,1786) - {1,422,178)
Pension scheme liability - {11,077,000) - {11,077,000)
Total net assets 5,230,835 {9,536,982) 67,301,329 82,8085 282
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted general fixed asset
funds funds funds Total funds
E £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - 67,774,834 67,774,834
Current assets 4,686,147 2,217,718 74,144 6,878,008
Current liabilities - (640,254) - (640,254)
Pension scheme liability - {7,614,000) - (7,614,000)
Total net assets 4,686,147 (6,036,536) 67,848,978 66,498,589
17 Capital commitments
2020 2019
£ £
Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements 488,500 77,717
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

(continued)

18 Commitments under operating leases

Operating leases

At 31 August 2020 the tofal of the academy trust's future minimum lease payments under

non-canceltable operating leases was:

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due between one and five years

2020 2018
£ £
55,218 64,222
46,975 93,804
162,193 168,026

19 Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

Net expenditure for the reporting period (as per the statement of
financial activities)

Depreciation

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income

Interest receivable

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
{Increase)/decrease in debtors

Increasel{decraasa) in creditors

Net cash provided by Operating Activities

20 Cash flows from Invasting activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital funding received from sponsors and others

Net cash used in investing activities
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2019720 201818
£ £
(1,288,307) (2,419,117
1,601,250 1,855,802
(505,511) (253,848)
(34,030) (37,895)
1,098,000 863,000
150,000 110,000
(439,737) 487,568
781,923 (120,494)
1,363,588 505,016
2019/20 201818
£ £
34,030 37,895
(659,245) (818,276)
505,511 253,848
(119,704) (528,533)




Education and Leadership Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(continued)

21 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2020 2019
£ £
Cash at bank and in hand 7,366,414 6,122 530
Total cash and cash equivalents 7,366,414 6,122,530
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Education and Leadership Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(continued)

23 Contingent liabilities

During the life of the funding agreement, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any
asset for which a government capital grant was received, the Trust is required either to re-invest the
proceeds or to repay to the Secretary of State for Education the same proportion of the proceeds of
the sale or disposal as equates with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of State.

Upon termination of the funding agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the Trust
serving notice, the Trust shall repay to the Secretary of State sums determined by reference to:-

a) the value at that time of the Trust's site and premises and other assets held for the purpose of the
Trust and

b) the extent to which expenditure incurred in providing those assets was met by payments by the
Secretary of State under the funding agreement.

24 Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable
company in the event of it being wound up whilst they are a member, or within one year after they
ceass to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and
liabllities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

25 Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong o two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension
Scheme England end Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching stafl, which is managed by Greater Manchester Pension
Fund. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS
31 March 2019.

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial
year.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, govermed
by the Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies, Al
teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other
pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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25 Penslon and similar obligations {continued)

Valuation of the Teachars® Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future
costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried
out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on §
March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

+ employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including & 0.08% administration
levy)

+ total scheme liabilities {pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated future
contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million,
giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

» the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI. assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.

The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £2,121,187 (2019: £1,493,588),
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme.
The academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined
contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme,
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(continued)

25 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Local government pension scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-adminislerad

funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 Au
£1,066,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £770,000
contributions totalled £193,000 (2019 - £255,000). The agreed co
18.5 per cent for employers and banded from 5.5 to 12.5 per cent

Parllament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of Slats

gust 2020 was £963,000 (2019 -
(2019 - £801,000) and empioyees'
niribution rates for future years are
for employees.

for Education, to a guarantee that, in

the event of an academy trust closure, outstanding Local Gavemment Penslon Scheme lisblliities
would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation
Discount rate for scheme iiabilities

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future im

rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today
Males retiring today
Females retiring today

Retiring In 20 years
Males retiring In 20 years
Females retiring in 20 years

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate -0.5%
Salary increase rate +0.5%
Pension increase rate +0.5%

The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme were:
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2020
%

3.00

2.20
1.70

2019
%
3.10
2.30
1.90

provements in the mortality

2020 2019
20.50 20.60
23.10 23.10
22.00 22.00
25.00 24.80
2020 2019
E £
3,277,000.00 2,814,000.00
324,000.00 413,000.00
2,894,000.00 2,242,000.00
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(continued)

25 Penslon and similar obligations (continued)

2020 2019

£ £
Equities 9,384,000 8,798,000
Government bonds 2,208,000 1,941,000
Property 966,000 1,035,000
Cash and other liquid assets 1,242,000 1,164,000
Total market value of assets 13,800,000 12,838,000
The actual return on scheme assets was £81,000 (2019 - £570,000).
LGPS Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities

2019/20 2018/19

£ £
Current service cost (1,098,000) (883,000)
Interest income 244,000 333,000
Interest cost {394,000) {443,000)
Total amount recognized in the SOFA (1,248,000} (993,000)
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2019/20 201819

£ £
At start of period 20,552,000 16,036,000
Current service cost 1,868,000 1,469,000
Interest cost 394,000 443,000
Employee contributions 193,000 255,000
Actuarial (gain)/loss 2,052,000 3,254,000
Benefits paid {182,000) {120,000)
Past service cost - 215,000

24,877,000 20,552,000

At 31 August
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25 Pension and similar obligations {continued)

Movements In the fair value of trust's share of scheme assets

2019120 201819
£ £
At start of period 12,938,000 11,432,000
[nterest income 244,000 333,000
Actuarial gainf(ioss) (163,000) 237,000
Employer contributions 770,000 801,000
Employee contributions 183,000 255,000
Benefits paid (182,000) {(120,000)
At 31 August 13,800,000 12,838,000

26 Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Trust’s operations and the composition of the board of Trusiees being
drawn from local public and private sector organisations, it Is inevitable that transactions will take
place with organisations in which a member of the board of Trustees may have an interest, All
transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm's length and in accordance with the

Trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures.

No related party transactions took place in the year of account, other than certain trustees’

remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 10.

Page 67






